
GWAC F2F San Diego – Tuesday, October 4, 2022  
Attendees: 

F2F: Ron Bernstein, Ron Melton, Seemita Pal, Jaime Kolln, Ron Ambrosio, Ron Cunningham, Marc Costa, 
David Forfia, David Wollman, Ahlmahz Negash, Kay Aikin, Rahul Bahadur, Anthony James, Susie McGuire 

Online: Farrokh Rahimi, Leonard Tillman, Hayden Reeve, Mark Paterson, Dave LeVee, Ayad 
Abdelrahman, Andrew Bordine, Wade Troxel, Larisa Dobriansky  

Ron Bernstein opened the GWAC Administrative Meeting.  

 

The September Meeting Minutes will be sent out in time for the next meeting. 

 



 

 

Jaime Kolln asked to add IEEE Grid Edge Technologies Conference, April 10-13, 2023, San Diego, CA 

Key Aikin asked to add gridCONNEXT 2022, to be held December 5 - 6, 2022 in Washington DC. 

Action: Add these conferences to the conference slide (done) 

Ron B. replied to a question by Farrokh Rahimi, he has not yet heard back from ASHRAE about 
acceptance of the GWAC panel at the AHR Expo, but he expects to hear soon. Ron noted that the GWAC 
panel talk would likely be scheduled on Feb. 7 and then we could host the GWAC F2F meeting on Feb. 8, 
2023, the location is Atlanta, GA. 

Ron M. asked about the next GWAC Blog post. Rahul has one ready to go except for final touches, he will 
talk offline with Kay offline about the next blog. 

Ron Melton reminded the group that in a few weeks we will open the GWAC new member selection 
process. Ron encouraged the group to think about possible candidates and invite them to apply. Those 
who have had some involvement with the GWAC are preferred so that the group has some idea about 
their experience. Those who work in the grid industry with background relevant to the GWAC would 
make good candidates. Ron will talk with those who have terms that will be expiring in January. 

GWAC members should please tell Ron Melton if they wish to continue or are ready to transfer to 
emeritus. Ron is hoping to talk to all of those with expiring terms by the end of October. A message will 
go out to the GWAC mailing list and the application process will be posted on the GWAC website. 

New Candidates will apply in October through December. 

The selection committee will meet in late December or early January to review the submitted 
applications. 



The Selection Committee will consist of five people. Dave Wollman with NIST agreed to again be an 
external reviewer.  Two GWAC members whose terms are not expiring will also be needed along with 
Chris Irwin, DOE, and Ron Melton as GWAC Administrator. 

Ron M. noted that if enough applications come in, the committee will meet in late December or early 
January. If not, the process could be extended to allow more time for applicants. The time commitment 
is about 20% time.  Applicants should check with their employers to be sure they will support the effort.  
Applicants have four to five pages to complete as part of the application process. The application 
process will be posted on the GWAC website. 

Seemita Pal, PNNL, gave an update on the progress of the grid architecture white paper.  She noted that 
the edits provided from feedback have been made.  She is working with PNNL Communications to 
update some of the diagrams, and she is working on finalizing the draft. It is almost ready for review. 
She has had some time constraints this fall but she is pushing the paper along. 

Ron Bernstein reported that the TESC 2022 conference ended with a final net positive balance of $1500 
this year.  

Ron B. asked Anthony James, SCE if he thought the SDGE offices might be a possible location for the next 
IEEE TESC Conference. He asked if SCE would be interested in providing space for the conference? 
Anthony replied that he will look into it and get back to Ron 

David Forfia asked if the PNNL TSP project would still be willing to support the TESC conference. David 
suggests we look at when to get started and when to hold it with an on existing meetings such as AHR, 
IEEE T & D and the ISGT conferences.  He suggested the months of February, late May, or early June as 
good candidates but he noted 2023 would be too soon.  

Ron B. said that depending on what GWAC comes up with for the next big thing it might be appropriate 
to change the name from TESC to something else, if the GWAC is moving on from Transactive Energy. 

 Ron M. said that would need to be a discussion for the group and we would need to be sure that Chris 
Irwin agrees. 

David Wollman will save his liaison report for the later discussion. 

  



Day 1 Speaker highlights - 
 

Ron Melton introduced Marc Costa with the Energy Coalition as the first speaker of the day.  Marc is 
presenting on his perspective as a GWAC Associate member. 

 

 

Marc gave an introduction of his experience noting that he works more on the demand side, and with 
DOE BTO and other research organizations. He commented about interoperability data on the 
regulatory front. His primary experience is with local government, public safety, and local infrastructure.  
On the DSO side there should be some intersection of these elements. 

On the load changes – if there is no impact for net peak load – behind the meter, how can we bridge the 
gap? A multi-lab effort that NREL leads tries to mesh these two things.  NOVA in CA just filed to be a 
micro utility.  There are goals on the books, we have seen a radical uptake in CCAs. We can challenge the 
assumptions. We are realizing there are underserved communities.  

Bill Gates said we won’t solve a challenge by asking people to consume less of something. If you 
challenge these assumptions, there are interesting targets, moving targets. 

It comes down to what is the ultimate goal – what if we achieve our goals? It’s interesting to think all the 
way out and then look backwards.  

If we have abundant, cheap energy – what is the upper limit? What is the max load?  



 

With all the available funds, with all the knowledge and GWAC expertise, what should we do?  

 

Jaime Kolln presented the next talk –  

 

Jaime Kolln would like to recognize GWAC experience, from many diverse innovators 

Steve Widergren, PNNL has been a mentor for Jaime at PNNL. The value that he sees with GWAC is in 
outreach, innovation, and contributions to the smart grid mission and vision.  GWAC has provided both 
education and impact.  

Jaime spent some time looking at how this group evolved over time. The GWAC started under Eric 
Lightner, DOE Office of Electricity. 

Jaime explained the difference between GWAC and the GridWise Alliance, also started under Eric 
Lightner, which is the industry lead. GWAC is the “brain trust,” piece. 

Ron Melton added that GridWise was the DOE smart grid program.  He added that Battelle Memorial 
Institute owns the registered trademark. 

Jaime said that in his study of the GWAC products and history, he is impressed by the fact that we are 
still using basic tenants first developed by the group in 2003.  

 



 

 

Demand Response can be used different ways – it doesn’t describe the service.  This work has been built 
on the GWAC foundational documents. 

Jaime has reread the GWAC stack, and the Interoperability context setting documents, and said that he 
has gotten new information from it each time. He can see the roots and long-term vision when he reads 
them. He’s impressed with the forethought. He noted that GWAC’s aspirational goals – and advanced 
grid architecture – he sees us moving faster than the utilities in classifying interoperability needs.  

Jamie charged photos from the 2005 Interoperability “Constitutional Convention” held in 2005: 

 

 

Ron Ambrosio added that GridWise was a DOE program under Eric Lightner, in 2003.  The first face to 
face meeting was held in May 2004.  Steve Widergren formed the council around different segments of 



industry and then brought their perspectives together. It the group took six months to figure out that 
their disagreements were because they all used different terms to describe the same thing. 

The constitution was an attempt to talk to industry and gather perspectives on what is needed, and 
what challenges and issues they faced. It’s still a relevant document. It has been updated a couple times. 
It was always intended to be a living document.  GWAC is now in its 18th year. 

 

 

At the start GWAC members spent a lot of time talking with industry to form its foundation.  



 

 

The group had been together for one and a half years before the constitutional convention meeting. 

The context setting framework meeting was held in was May 2005 

By Sept 2006 the GWAC Interoperability Framework was substantially defined. 



GWAC used the constitution to validate the framework. 

 

 

Ron Ambrosio mentioned the GWAC stack.  

He showed early versions of the Framework. 



 

First interop forum in 2007 

 

There was a series of meetings held from 2007 to 2012 on the topic of building interoperability 
awareness.  At some point we’d pass the red line and move to interoperability culture.  In 2012, or 2013 



they declared victory. In 2009 there was funding to get things formed; SGIP had recently formed, and 
interoperability had its own momentum. 

In 2007 the EISA legislation was the first time that GWAC was called out as an organization and 
impressively was called out first in the list. There was recognition that what we were doing was key at 
that time. 

Gerry Fitzpatrick at NIST was a key player. They got started by organizing around what GWAC was doing.  
GWAC was very involved. At the time Ron Ambrosio was head of the grid architecture committee.  

Dave Wollman said that NIST had an EISA task to work with congress in 2006 and 2007.  Gerry was also 
involved, he more on the technology side and Dave with working with funding. There was discussion 
about what should be DOE and what should be NIST (Dept of Commerce). They had a chance to get 
involved in something their stakeholders cared about and needed.  

NIST and GWAC had to figure out what each was doing.  NIST wanted to do standards coordination.   

ARRA Act money helped NIST get going and then they added some initiatives. 

Dave Wollman and Ron Melton tackled business and policy with DNP Duke.  SGIP was designed to build 
on stakeholder needs. They wanted to welcome all stakeholders. Gary Locke and Steven Chu were the 
HQ leads. Grid Architecture was something Ron Ambrosio grew to love. Architecture was the glue that 
held everything together.  They worked with NEMA and others for testing certification. Cybersecurity 
was a factor. Logical interfaces and how to apply cybersecurity was considered.  

Ron Ambrosio noticed that at one NIST conference all the rooms had people with their own battles.  
Dave Wollman and Erich Gunther developed a teaming model and instilled more structure and 
involvement. They leap frogged some things and figure out effective partnering that created a more 
cohesive and effective group. 

This led to a series of SGIP organizations.  They brought in some initiatives at about $2M in total. SGIP 
had to transfer to industry.   

 



Day 2 Speaker highlights - 
Ron Melton, Ron Bernstein, David Forfia, Ron Ambrosio, Ahlmahz Negash, Seemita Pal, Jaime Kolln, 
Susan McGuire, Ron Cunningham, Lorenzo Kristov, Anthony James, Rahul Bahadur, Marc Costa, Kay 
Aikin, David Wollman 

David Forfia gave a brief history of the GWAC 

Ahlmahz Negash asked about how often the GWAC products are downloaded from the website.   

Action: Susie and Jaime will talk with the PNNL GWAC website administrator about setting up some 
analytics. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Past GWAC Chair David Forfia recounted some of the impromptu discussions at previous meetings that 
have been the genesis of many key GWAC documents such as the TE Framework. 



 

Mark Knight had created a You Tube video at one of the past conferences.   

David noted how much he learned from the late Erich Gunther, a former GWAC member. He quoted 
Erich with “the pesky laws of physics.” David also noted the value of networking and thought leadership 
to the GWAC. 

 

 

David noted that the line to get to the next step is not going to be a straight line. He referred to the 
three stages of the TE Roadmap.  



David said we need to look at what needs to happen in each stage. 

 

In this slide Ron Bernstein had created the TE hub and the other diagram is from a paper by David 
Hardman from 2010 or 2011 which is on the GWAC website. 

Jaime noted that all the products are the foundation of future work. 

Ron M Introduced Angela Becker-Dippman who re-joined PNNL in 2019. She has been chief of staff for 
the US senate energy committee.  She is part of the EED Sector team. She will give us a high-level view 
of DOE priorities for the Lab. This could help GWAC to better understand the DOE perspective. 

She highlighted some new offices and changes in staffing on the DOE organizational chart.  

The bipartisan infrastructure law has gone into effect and has created changes in staffing and strategy.  
There will be 65B in infrastructure spending.  



 

 

Ron Melton commented that the GWAC meeting held in person was in January 2020 in Orlando.  Angela 
noted many things have changed since then.  

Angela Becker-Dippman noted that she had been involved in 2006 and 2007 in appropriations during the 
timeframe of the Oly Penn Demo by PNNL and the EISA. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Angela Becker-Dippman gave a briefing of each of the initiatives shown including Net zero world 
initiatives and other initiatives: 

 



 

 

Angela told the group that the question, “what is 40% of a benefit” is a key question right now within 
and outside of the DOE. 

She added that we plan the grid for reliability and least cost – but there are tradeoffs. This creates a 
debate for the DOE and with its stakeholders. Concepts like TE and how to provide for it as well as who 
shares the benefit bear additional discussion.  Connecting communities looks at some of this. 



 

Angela noted the new Office of Clean Energy Demonstrations – and noted how quickly they are trying to 
ramp up. She went through the list of demonstration projects. 

Kay asked about the S4 position above EERE and others. She asked about the structure. 

Angela confirmed that Pat Hoffman is in the new grid deployment office for now. She does have a new 
boss but it’s the same number of layers. 

Angela said an integrated approach is needed. With some grants to states initiatives will need to set 
priorities in line with state objectives and needed investments. She said projects will be expected to be 
“shovel ready” as with the past ARRA initiatives.  

Ron Bernstein said that GWAC participants could act as reviewers for EERE proposals. He is doing that as 
a volunteer.  Ron said reviewers should not just review for capability and cost but also for the fit to 
overall objectives including energy justice and equity issues or resilience issues.  

Marc Costa would like to have the opportunity to act as a reviewer. 

Ron Melton noted some plans like cyber technology was with ARRA, and asked if there will there be 
requirements for tech elements in future plans or calls? 

Angela said yes for smart grid investment grants – like with cyber and transportation electrification – 
there is opportunity. She noted the need for coordinated control at a systems scale, coordinating is very 
important.  Ron M. said he would be glad to talk with her more on this topic. 

Rahul Bahadur noted funding at the local level is creating demand with incentives for homeowners – she 
said the IRA is using the tax code and tax credits for home issues. Individual homeowners don’t know 



how to leverage opportunities.  She noted the challenge even in Seattle of installing a heat pump water 
heater. 

Marc Costa asked about societal transformation and the grid – what bubbles to the top of mind? 

Angela said it’s a tough question – she said scaling the work force such as with IBEW analytics. It’s a 
major barrier of difficulty. Also, a strategic effort state by state to increase regulatory innovations will be 
needed. We might ask how do we transform technical assistance – how to lower barriers with planning 
paradigms? Solutions might include shifting the priorities of utility spending to adopt new models that 
will be needed in the future. State and federal conflict has been a barrier. It can be well informed by 
architecture.  Such was where to put communications investments in the state of Washington as an 
example. 

Lorenzo Kristov added that regulatory innovation is extremely important. Customers are adopting DERS 
because they like them for security and power quality, and the incentive may not matter to them.  A 
regulatory framework to capture that value – he sees that as a lag in state regulatory committees. 

Anthony James gave a presentation on highlights from Southern California Edison 

 

Anthony noted that Southern California Edison is an investor-owned utility serving southern California. 



 

They are working with EPRI to design  

They hope to decarbonize all electrical systems. 

 

Anthony replied to a question from Ron Melton that the ES factor is about 10% of their capacity.  



 

They are looking at residential homes with one or two EVs. 

 

 

Some weather challenges affect production such as a hot day with cloud cover.  

 

Southern California Edison is planning for anticipated climate change influenced weather conditions. 



 

 

Ron M asked about EV charging options for housing situations where people don’t have a garage, or 
driveway to charge from. 

Anthony said it’s come up and he could put Ron in touch with someone at SCE. Ron M said this has been 
an issue for the city of Seattle. 

Ron B asked if with large fleet EVs, is extra maintenance needed for transformers to support more EV 
charging? 

Anthony said it is a capacity issue, and Ron M. said that the load level, duration, and ambient 
temperature do have a long-term effect on the life of transformers. 

 



 

 

 

Ron B. asked what the enabler is, and Anthony replied that it helps to affect change in the environment. 
He added that they are selling space, comfort is a selling point.   

Ron B. said ESA interfaces on the buildings side, to shift power from one application to another when 
needed. Anthony said that SCE did a pilot with EPRI last year and noted how load was affected by a 
change in the weather. 

Ron B. said tracking load and correlated weather changes may help and the information should help in 
decision making. 

 

 

 

 



Ron B mentioned social and cultural changes from buildings as customers adapt. 

Ron M gave the example of a balance sheet with an energy (or carbon) bank. Customers may buy or sell 
with that bank.  The bank through an Energy services agent or ESA may “ask” the building for something. 

They will need pilot programs to help them better understand flexibility.  

Seemita asked about vehicle to grid issues and Jaime noted that commercial vehicles can discharge to 
the grid but so far manufacturers have been reluctant to do that. Ron M and Ron B noted this can be 
possible and Kay A noted it can be an electrical code issue.  

 

Ron A gave an example of a transformer that was still in use at 70 years.  

Seemita mentioned transformer reliability is used in grid planning. 

Anthony noted the many factors involved in planning including EV reliability.  

Anthony told the group that he is happy to take questions even after the meeting. 

 

 


